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Chapter 2071 Rapid recovery_3 

“Okay, thank you, Mr. Xia!” Rousey said. 

Before Xia ruofei left, she winked at Monica with her back facing Rousey. Monica naturally understood 

and gave a small nod. 

After Xia ruofei left Rousey’s room, Monica also found an excuse and left. 

Rousey watched Monica’s back disappear from the door in a hurry and couldn’t help but Mutter to 

himself,””You’re going to review documents at this time? This excuse was too clumsy! I’m not a kid 

anymore ... But, it seems like it’s not a bad thing for this Mr. Xia to be my brother – in – Law?” 

Rousey then pressed the bell on the bed and called out,””Anna! Come over and help me wash off the 

ointment. I’m going to sleep ...” 

Upstairs, in Xia ruofei’s guest room, it was naturally filled with the smell of spring again ... 

For the next three days, Xia ruofei treated Rousey once a day. 

He still used the combination of acupuncture, massage, and external application of ointment. 

Every time he massaged Rousey, he would be in so much pain that he would sweat. 

As time went on, Rossi’s leg recovered better and his pain nerves became more and more sensitive, so 

each treatment was more painful than the last. 

However, Rousey gritted his teeth and endured it every time. Other than the first time when he was not 

mentally prepared, he did not even make a sound the other times. 

Xia ruofei had chosen this treatment method because, on one hand, it was indeed of great help to the 

recovery of the nerves in Rossi’s legs. On the other hand, he wanted to train Rossi’s willpower. 

It turned out that Rousey’s will was really tough. 

On the last day, Xia ruofei applied the rest of the ointment on Rousey’s calf. 

Then, he smiled and said,”today is the last treatment. Monica, you can get the physical therapist you’ve 

contacted to come over tomorrow. First, give Rousey a comprehensive examination. Then, we can 

formulate a recovery plan.” I’m not as good as those professional rehabilitation trainers, so I’ll leave it to 

them!” 

“Alright!” Monica nodded. 

Xia ruofei glanced at Rousey’s leg and felt a sense of accomplishment. 

A few days ago, his legs were seriously deformed, forming an ugly O – shape. After a few days of 

treatment, other than muscle atrophy, which made his legs look thinner than normal, there was 

basically no sign of any abnormality. 



Xia ruofei had used his spiritual power to check and knew that the nerves in Rossi’s legs had recovered. 

The treatment could be said to be very successful. 

What was even more valuable was that this time, he didn’t completely rely on the petals of the spirit 

Heart Flower to complete the healing. 

Xia ruofei was very clear that if it was just a single spirit Heart Flower petal, with the severity of Luo SI’s 

leg disease, it would be impossible for her to recover to this extent. 

It could be said that his acupuncture and massage, as well as the muscle and bone – strengthening 

ointment itself, played a pivotal role in this treatment. 

Rousey felt like he had been in a beautiful dream for the past few days. He could feel better every day, 

and the feeling was wonderful. 

His admiration for Xia ruofei grew day by day. 

Therefore, Rossi could not help but say,”Mr. Xia, I still hope that you can come and help me with my 

rehabilitation training.” I only believe in your medical skills now!” 

Xia ruofei laughed.”Thank you very much for your trust. But ... Rossi, every field has its own specialty. In 

terms of muscle recovery training, those professional rehabilitation trainers will definitely do better than 

me.” You’ll recover faster if you train with them, understand?” 

Xia ruofei couldn’t help but add,””This is also one of my medical advice. Do you remember it?” 

Rousey then nodded and said,”alright!” I’ll listen to you!” 

“Yeah,” Xia ruofei nodded,”I’m going to return to China after I’m done with the rehabilitation trainer. 

Rousey, I’ll be waiting for your good news in China. You’re also welcome to come to China to play at any 

time after your recovery!” 
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When Monica and Rosey heard that, they let out an “ah” at the same time. They both felt that it was 

very sudden. 

Especially Monica, who had just been together with Xia ruofei for a few days. The two of them had been 

fooling around every night. When she suddenly heard that Xia ruofei was going back to China, she 

suddenly felt a strong reluctance. 

“Xia, why do you suddenly want to go back?” she asked. 

Xia ruofei smiled and said,”I’ve been out for quite a long time. I even have a company in China!” We 

can’t just leave them behind. ” 

“You’ve only been in Turin for a few days,” Rousey said in surprise. 

Xia ruofei was stunned for a moment before he came back to his senses. Indeed, he had only been in 

Turin for four days, but he had actually made a trip to Italy as Xia Tian. It had been more than half a 

month since he came back. He had not realized this problem earlier. 



Xia ruofei’s brain was spinning fast.””Oh ... I was on a business trip for a few days before I came. After I 

saw Monica’s email, I came to Italy directly. I haven’t been back to the company for almost a month.” 

“I see ...” Rousey said. 

In that case, they couldn’t keep him any longer. After all, his business was very important. 

Monica’s heart was filled with warmth. Xia ruofei had not replied to her email before because he had 

not read it. However, the moment he saw the email, he rushed to Italy even if he was on a business trip. 

This showed that Xia ruofei cared about her very much. 

Xia ruofei looked at Monica and then said to Rousey,””Rousey, have a good rest first! When your legs 

are fully recovered, you can go anywhere you want. You’re always welcome to come to China to play 

with me!” 

“It’s a deal!” Rousey said with a bright smile. 

“It’s a deal!” Xia ruofei said. Then, he turned to Monica and said,”Monica, come out with me. I have 

something to discuss with you.” 

“Oh ... Okay!” Monica was a little distracted after hearing that Xia ruofei was going back to China. 

The two of them left Rousey’s room one after another. Xia ruofei said to Monica,””I’m sorry! I can’t stay 

with you for a few more days this time ...” 

Monica smiled and said,”it’s okay ... You’ve already done a lot for me!” Xia, I’ve just taken over the 

family’s Affairs recently, so I might be a little busy. After I’ve sorted things out on my side, I’ll go to China 

to see you when I’m free!” 

Xia ruofei could see Monica’s deep affection for him. In fact, their relationship had unknowingly 

developed from purely physical needs to mutual admiration. Seeing the reluctance in Monica’s eyes, Xia 

ruofei couldn’t help but feel a little lost. 

Monica saw this and quickly said,”Xia, I know you have a girlfriend in China. Don’t worry. I won’t ruin 

your relationship. But ... I also hope that you don’t leave me ... I ... It’s enough as long as I can occupy a 

little place in your heart ...” 

Seeing this, Xia ruofei couldn’t help but feel pity. He quickly hugged Monica’s shoulder and said 

gently,””You’ve misunderstood. It’s not that I don’t welcome you to China. I just suddenly thought of 

something. Monica, you’re always welcome to go to China. Just let me know in advance and I’ll send a 

plane to pick you up!” 

Monica pursed her lips and smiled.”There’s no need to go through so much trouble. When I’m free, I’ll 

buy a ticket and fly over!” 

“Xia, when do you plan to return to China?” Monica asked. 

Although Xia ruofei knew that Monica wanted him to stay for a few more days, he also knew that even if 

he stayed in Turin for a few more days, he would still have to go back eventually. Parting was inevitable. 



Hence, Xia ruofei thought for a while and said,””The initial plan is to meet with the physical therapist 

tomorrow and leave. The morning of the day after tomorrow at the latest! This will depend on my 

crew’s application for the flight route. ” 

“In other words, we have at most 40 hours left ...” Monica said. Then, she glanced at Xia ruofei and 

said,”let’s go. Take me to my room!” 

“Ah?” Xia ruofei was stunned. 

“I must treasure every minute and second that I have with you.” Monica whispered into Xia ruofei’s 

ear,”and I hope you can remember every inch of my skin and every breath ...” 

Her lazy voice and deadly seductive eyes made Xia ruofei’s heart burn with passion. Without a word, he 

pulled Monica and ran to his room ... 

The next day, Xia ruofei and Monica accompanied Rousey to a famous local Rehabilitation Center in 

Turin. 

Monica had already contacted everything in advance. In fact, Rossi had also received treatment at the 

rehabilitation Center over the years, but he was in a bad condition at the time. Rehabilitation training 

could only slow down muscle atrophy, but it could not do anything about his leg injury. 

Therefore, when Rousey’s former attending doctor saw his current condition, he was also shocked 

beyond words. 

Monica followed Xia ruofei’s instructions and did not reveal anything about Rousey’s treatment. 

Rousey received a comprehensive examination at the rehabilitation Center. His condition was quite 

optimistic. His originally deformed leg bone had now been completely corrected. Most importantly, the 

necrotic nerves in his leg had also been restored to full vitality, like a withered tree coming back to 

spring. 

Muscle atrophy could be recovered through gradual training. Also, after so many years without walking, 

Rossi might still have some psychological barriers. 
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However, under modern medical conditions, these problems were not impossible to overcome, 

including psychological obstacles. They could also be gradually recovered through effective intervention 

by psychologists. 

It could be said that it was only a matter of time before Rousey’s legs completely returned to normal. 

Everything was just as Xia ruofei had told Luo Si: safe. 

When he saw the long report issued by the rehabilitation Center, Rousey’s eyes were filled with tears, 

and the excitement in his heart was difficult to describe. 

Although he could feel that his legs were recovering at a very fast speed these days, and there were 

gratifying changes every day, as a person who grew up in Europe, lirossi subconsciously believed more in 

the intuitive data of Western medicine tests. 



Now that the test report showed that his legs had recovered better than he had imagined, it was like 

giving him a calming pill. The big stone in his heart was finally lifted. 

In response to Rossi’s current situation, the rehabilitation Center gave a very scientific recovery plan. 

Now that Monica was in control of the Grasso family, she naturally had no financial difficulties, so she 

Simply Hired an experienced physical therapist and asked him to go to the Grasso family’s Manor every 

day to help Rousey with his rehabilitation training. 

The equipment needed for rehabilitation training was not complicated. He could just buy a set and put it 

at home. In this way, Rossi did not need to run to the rehabilitation Center every day. He trained at 

home and regularly went to the rehabilitation Center for a comprehensive examination. Then, he would 

constantly adjust the training plan according to the recovery situation. 

Of course, Xia ruofei had strongly suggested this. 

Other than convenience, he was more concerned about safety. Although the destruction of the 

Gehrman family was caused by the Hong sect and had nothing to do with the Grasso family, there would 

still be some clues that pointed to Monica if he were to investigate. 

Xia ruofei could not guarantee that the glory society would not turn their sights on the Grasso family or 

even Monica. 

Therefore, Rousey should try to reduce the number of times he went out. 

In addition, Xia ruofei had specifically instructed Lu zhengfeng to further strengthen the protection of 

the Grasso family. Other than ah Yong and Ah Hua, who were stationed there for a long time, there 

should be people secretly protecting them. 

When Monica left, the Hong sect brothers who were in charge of protecting her had to be on high alert. 

They couldn’t afford to make any mistakes. 

After arranging Rossi’s follow – up treatment, Xia ruofei left Turin in the Gulfstream G650 public jet in 

the afternoon local time. 

Of course, before they bade each other farewell, Xia ruofei prepared a jade pendant for Monica and 

Rousey. He also reminded them to wear it at all times and never let it leave their bodies. 

Even Lyu hai and Lyu zhengfeng had received the Jade pendants from Xia ruofei, not to mention his own 

woman and brother – in – Law. 

Moreover, the two jade pendants were of a higher grade than lui hai ‘S. Xia ruofei chose the Jade of 

higher quality. There was also a mini spirit gathering array embedded in the protective array, which was 

mainly used to replenish the energy of the protective array. 

In that case, these two pieces of jade were not disposable. According to Xia ruofei’s estimation, they 

could withstand at least three to four attacks from conventional firearms. 

This was the only way Xia ruofei could leave Turin without worry. 



Xia ruofei was still unsure about the glorious Association’s problem. However, they had not made any 

moves yet, so Xia ruofei could only observe. 

He told lui hai to pay close attention to the movement of the glory society and to inform him at once if 

there was any movement. 

If the glory Association really harbored ill intentions towards the Hong sect and even the Grasso family, 

then he would definitely nip the threat in the bud. Even if he had to start a massacre again, he would 

not hesitate. 

This time, Xia ruofei was flying to the three mountains. 

It was a private jet anyway, so the route was more flexible. The main thing was that he had already met 

his brothers in Beijing a few days ago. He couldn’t help them with the club’s specific matters. Besides, 

Song Wei had not returned to Beijing, so there was no point in him going to Beijing. 

After more than ten hours of flight, the Gulfstream plane landed smoothly on the runway of the 

Sanshan International Airport. 

When Xia ruofei took off from Turin, it was around 3 p.m. Local time. Due to the seven – hour time 

difference between China and Italy, it was already 8 a.m. In San Shan when the plane landed. 

In fact, it was pitch black outside the porthole for most of the flight. Hence, after Xia ruofei ate 

something, he went to the private bedroom in the back cabin and took a nap. He only woke up when the 

air stewardess knocked on his door and reminded him that the plane was about to land. 

During the take – off and landing phase, passengers were required to sit in their seats and fasten their 

seat belts. This was also for safety considerations, even private planes were no exception. 

Xia ruofei washed up and returned to his seat. After about half an hour, the plane landed smoothly. 

After Xia ruofei let the flight crew handle the follow – up work, he repaired himself at San Shan while he 

dragged a simple suitcase out of the business jet building. 

Ye Lingyun, who had been notified in advance, drove Xia ruofei’s Knight XV to the airport to pick them 

up. 

Taoyuan farm was very close to the airport. On the way, Xia ruofei briefly asked about the company’s 

current situation, and then the two chatted for a while. The car had already entered the farm’s Gate. 

After the company’s headquarters moved to the city center, the farm was much quieter, but it also 

seemed more relaxed. 

Of course, the expansion of the farm and the sub – Factory of the pharmaceutical factory had already 

started construction. Xia ruofei could see the busy construction site in the distance before he entered 

the door. 

It was just that it was quite a distance from here, so the farm would not be too noisy. 

Xia ruofei asked ye Lingyun to send him to the small mansion. 



When Blackie and the rest saw Xia ruofei who had not appeared for days, they ran up to him happily. 

Some licked his shoes, some tugged at his pants, and a few wagged their tails at Xia ruofei when they 

could not get in. They looked very intimate. 

When Xia ruofei was not at home, ye Lingyun would arrange for people to prepare food for little black 

and the rest. He would also maintain the villa’s hygiene regularly. 

Xia ruofei asked ye Lingyun to bring the luggage into the villa while he giggled and squatted down to 

play with little black and the rest for a while. 

Ye Lingyun took his leave after putting Xia ruofei’s luggage in. 

After Xia ruofei returned to the villa, he went to the master bedroom upstairs to take a shower. Then, he 

took out his phone and called some people close to him. 

The first call was naturally to Monica. The two of them had just parted ways, so she definitely had to let 

her know that she was safe now that she was home. 

Monica had many advantages of both Eastern and Western women. She was very loyal to Xia ruofei but 

not clingy, unlike some girls in China who were weak in front of their boyfriends. 

The two of them exchanged a few words on the phone and said goodbye. 

Then, Xia ruofei called Zhao Yongjun in the capital. He had flown to the three mountains directly from 

Turin and did not stop in the capital. It was reasonable to let Zhao Yongjun know. 

Naturally, Xia ruofei had to inform Feng Jing. 

Of course, he didn’t talk to Feng Jing for too long. He would be at the office tomorrow, so he could just 

report to her later. One more day wouldn’t make much of a difference. 

If it was really an emergency, he would have called to report it. 

Finally, Xia ruofei called Ling Qingxue. 

“Hello?” Ling Qingxue’s lazy voice came from the receiver. 

Xia ruofei looked at his watch and said,””Qingxue, are you still sleeping? It’s already nine in the morning, 

don’t you have to work today?” 

Ling Qingxue said lazily,”I was working on a bidding document yesterday. I only lay down at two in the 

morning. I don’t feel like going to the company in the morning ... Ruofei, why are you calling me now?” 

It’s still early in the morning in Italy, right?” 

Xia ruofei smiled and said,”I’m back!” He’s at Taoyuan farm right now!” 
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“Ah?” Ling Qingxue’s sleepiness was instantly gone. She sat up on the bed and said,”why didn’t you tell 

me in advance that you were coming back? I’ll pick you up at the airport!” 

Xia ruofei laughed and said,”the farm is right next to the airport. Why do you have to make a trip all the 

way from the city?” I didn’t want you to suffer, so I told you when I got home!” 



Xia ruofei continued,”stop talking about me. Why are you making the tender?” You’re actually sleeping 

at twoo’ clock, do you want to die?” 

Ling Qingxue replied,”sometimes!” Recently, the company is expanding, so it’s normal to have more 

things to do ... Ruofei, my dad is already looking for a professional manager team. I’ll be able to relax 

slowly in the future. ” 

“No matter what, try not to stay up late if you can.” Xia ruofei said,”Oh right, how’s your cultivation 

going while I wasn’t home?” 

Ling Qingxue said gloomily,”ruofei, am I stupid?” When a person trains alone, there’s basically no 

improvement ... I’ve already tried very hard, but ...” 

“Silly girl, Didn’t I tell you before? The “absolute beginning Scripture” cultivation technique is tailored for 

joint training. If you cultivate it alone, this cultivation technique is even worse than some unrated 

rubbish cultivation techniques!” Xia ruofei said,”that’s why it’s normal for your improvement to not be 

obvious. Don’t let your thoughts run wild ...” 

“I know you’ve said that!” Ling Qingxue said,”but you also told me that I have to persevere in my 

cultivation every day!” 

“That’s to let you familiarize yourself with the technique and maintain your sense of Qi. ” Xia ruofei 

smiled and said,”besides, if you don’t practice every day, it won’t just be a problem of not making 

obvious progress. You might even regress a lot! Cultivation is like rowing a boat against the current. You 

can’t slack off for even a moment. ” 

“I know ... I’ll work hard!” Ling Qingxue said,”it’s good that you’re back now. We can practice together!” 

“En!” Xia ruofei smiled and said,”I’ve been on the plane for more than ten hours today, so I’ll take a 

break first. I’ll go to the company tomorrow. Let’s have lunch together! If there’s nothing to do in the 

afternoon, we can practice together!” 

Of course, Xia ruofei also hoped that Ling Qingxue’s cultivation would improve as soon as possible. It 

would be best if they could engage in a deeper joint practice as soon as possible. 

Even though he still didn’t know how Ling Qingxue’s cultivation had reached that level and how he was 

going to tell her about Song Wei, there was always a way out. He had to let Ling Qingxue experience the 

wonderful feeling of the complete spiritual integration first. Only then would he be able to obtain Ling 

Qingxue’s understanding and acceptance. 

“Alright!” Ling Qingxue said happily,”you can rest well on the farm today! We’ll contact each other 

tomorrow ...” 

“Alright! Wife, I’m hanging up!” Xia ruofei said with a smile. 

“Bye!” 

After the call, Xia ruofei got up and went to lock the door and windows. Then, he took out the spirit map 

and painting scroll, ready to go to the medium to patrol. 

Just then, the phone he had just put down rang again. 



Xia ruofei held the painting in one hand and waved his other hand. The phone on the bedside table 

slowly floated to his hand. 

Xia ruofei took a look at the caller ID and saw that it was an unknown number. 

This kind of number was often used for fraud, marketing, and other Harassment calls. However, Xia 

ruofei saw that this number was not marked by other users, so he hesitated for a while and answered. 

“Hello!” Xia ruofei said indifferently. 

“Are you Mr. Xia ruofei?” A very young voice came from the phone, as if he had heard it somewhere 

before. 

“I am, and you are?” Xia ruofei asked. 

“Hello, Mr. Xia!” The young man said enthusiastically,”I’m Xiao Liao from azmu!” 

Xia ruofei was stunned for a moment. Then, he immediately remembered that this Xiao Liao was Liao 

Bo, the salesman of azmu’s yacht. 

“Oh, it’s manager Liao!” He immediately said with a smile. You’re calling me because you have good 

news, right?” 

“Mr. Xia, you’re really good at predicting things!” Liao Bo chuckled and said,”I’m just here to inform you 

that the yacht you ordered has arrived at the port! When do you think it’s convenient for you to come 

and handle the delivery?” 

Xia ruofei’s eyes lit up and he asked,”Oh?” Where’s the yacht now?” 

“The yacht is already docked at the three mountains cruise dock.” Liao Bo said,”our company also has an 

office near the yacht dock. I can send you the exact location through WeChat! What time would be more 

convenient for you?” 

Xia ruofei thought for a while and said,”let’s do it today!” Manager Liao, please add me on WeChat. This 

is the phone number, and just send me the location. ” 

“Alright!” Liao Bo said happily,”please bring along the agreement that you signed when you made the 

order, your personal identification documents, as well as the receipt for the advance payment and other 

information. In addition ... The final payment is 1.85 million Yuan. Please also prepare it in advance.” 

“No problem!” Xia ruofei said straightforwardly. 

After ordering the yacht, Xia ruofei had put all the relevant information in a document bag and directly 

thrown it into the cave in the mountain and sea realm in the spirit map space. 

Under the rules of the spirit map space, only Xia ruofei, the owner of the space, could enter the cave. It 

was safe enough to put it in the space, and it was even safer to put it in the cave. There was no need to 

worry about it being accidentally destroyed by the Hornet or the White sector Fox, who were the 

residents of the spirit map space. 
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As for the rest of the money, it was nothing to Xia ruofei. Not to mention the wealth that he had 

accumulated previously, just the trip to Italy alone had earned him 270 million euros. 1.85 million HxB 

was not even a fraction of that amount. 

Not long after Xia ruofei hung up, he received a friend request on WeChat. Hello, Mr. Xia, I’m Xiao Liao! 

Xia ruofei clicked ‘accept’ and at the same time, he blocked his WeChat moments. Usually, unless it was 

his good friends in real life, Xia ruofei would not let his business friends or today’s situation see his 

WeChat moments. 

He was still not used to revealing his privacy, so it was a coincidence that he became a popular person 

on the internet, envied by some celebrities. 

Liao Bo quickly sent an address to Xia ruofei and wrote,”Mr. Xia, I’ll be waiting for you at the office! 

Xia ruofei looked at the address and did some calculations in his heart. He replied,””I’ll be there in half 

an hour. ” 

Then, Xia ruofei kept the spirit map space back into his body. He picked up his handbag and stuffed his 

phone into it. Then, he walked down the stairs with light steps. 

The long – distance yacht Pier was located on the coast of the Jiangkou District of Sanshan city. It was 

basically between Changping County and the city. However, it was a walk – through from Taoyuan farm. 

It was not like the airport Highway to the city, which was connected to the winding city. Hence, Xia 

ruofei gave an estimated time of half an hour. 

Xia ruofei greeted Blackie and the rest in the villa’s yard. Then, he got into the Knight XV SUV. With the 

roaring engine, the car left the farm and headed towards the Jiangkou District. 

Twenty minutes later, Xia ruofei arrived at the long distance Yacht Harbor according to the GPS on his 

WeChat. 

From afar, he could already see Liao Bo, who was dressed in a suit and leather shoes, waiting at the 

entrance. 

Xia ruofei drove near Liao Bo and honked. Then, he stuck his head out and shouted,””Manager Liao!” 

Liao Bo turned his head and looked. He quickly jogged over and said with a smile,””Mr. Xia, you’re pretty 

fast!” 

“The yacht that I’ve been waiting for has finally arrived. Of course, I had to fly all the way here!” Xia 

ruofei said with a smile. 

Liao Bo explained awkwardly,”Mr. Xia, I’m sorry!” The yacht was originally expected to be delivered 

within two months, but there were two delays in the factory. In addition, there was a small incident 

during the transportation process, which led to a longer delay. ” 

Xia ruofei smiled and said,”it’s okay. Good food is never afraid of late!” Manager Liao, let’s talk in the 

car!” 

“Alright!” 



Liao Bo excitedly went to the side of the front passenger seat, opened the door, and climbed in. 

He sat in the passenger seat of the Knight XV off – Road vehicle and said enviously,””Mr. Xia, your car is 

really exciting! From the outside, it looked as domineering as an armored vehicle! The chassis is so high 

and the view is so wide ...” 

Xia ruofei laughed and said,”no matter how domineering it is, it’s not as valuable as your yacht ...” 

Actually, Xia ruofei was being modest. At least, his Knight XV was much more expensive than the 

azimuttlantis 34 yacht he had ordered. 

Liao Bo guided the way in the car and Xia ruofei quickly drove the car to a three – story building next to 

the yacht Pier. 

“We’re here, Mr. Xia!” Liao Bo said. 

Xia ruofei looked at Liao Bo and asked,””Why did I come to your office first? Shouldn’t I take a look at 

the yacht first?” 

Liao Bo smiled and said,”don’t worry. I’ll definitely ask you to check and accept it before the delivery. 

However, we need to go through a registration procedure to board the yacht. So, I’ll have to trouble you 

...” 

“I see! Then let’s go!” Xia ruofei opened the door and jumped out of the car. He followed Liao Bo into 

the lobby on the first floor. 

“Manager Qin!” Liao Bo greeted him as soon as he entered the door,”manager Qin, my client has 

arrived!” 

A beautiful woman in business attire walked over with a friendly smile. She extended her hand to Xia 

ruofei from afar and said,””Hello, Mr. Xia! Welcome, welcome! I’m the manager of this office, my name 

is Qin Lan!” 

“Hello, manager Qin!” Xia ruofei smiled and said,”nice to meet you!” 

“Little Liao has gone to go through the formalities. Please sit for a while. You’ll be able to see your yacht 

soon!” Qin Lan said. 

Xia ruofei sat on the guest sofa in the main hall while Qin Lan personally accompanied him and chatted 

with him. 

Xia ruofei realized that manager Qin was very talkative and knew the art of conversation. She could 

make people feel close to her. 

After a while, Liao Bo Ran over with a few pieces of paper and said,””Mr. Xia, there are a few places here 

that require your personal signature. I also need a copy of your identity card. Can I trouble you to pass 

me your identity card?” 

“Oh, I have some ready – made ones here.” Xia ruofei said. 

Then, Xia ruofei took out a file from his bag and took out a copy of his ID card to pass to Liao Bo. 



“That’s great, we don’t have to make copies!” Liao Bo said happily. 

Xia ruofei picked up the papers that needed his signature and read them carefully. They were mostly 

disclaimers and the like. 

If Xia ruofei went to look at the yacht, he would have to board it. He might even ask to go for a walk. If 

anything dangerous happened during this period, the company would be responsible. 

Seeing that there was no problem, Xia ruofei picked up the pen and signed his name. At the same time, 

he carefully wrote the words “for yacht – related procedures” on the ID photocopier and stamped it on 

top of the photocopied id to prevent it from being used for other illegal activities. 

Although it was unlikely for such a large company to sell out their customer’s information, Xia ruofei was 

used to preparing for the worst. 

Liao Bo kept the documents and said to Xia ruofei,””Mr. Xia, please wait a moment! I’ll hand in this 

information and we can go to the dock!” 

Soon, Liao Bo left and returned. The man who came with him was a man in his thirties. He had dark skin 

and looked like he often went out. 

Liao Bo introduced,”Mr. Xia, this is Liu Yi, an employee of our Yacht Club. He has a yacht driving license. 

You can take a tour around the area on the yacht later!” 

Xia ruofei got up and said,”let’s go!” Manager Qin, I’ll be going to the dock first!” 

“Alright! Alright!” Qin Lan also quickly stood up and said. 

At this stage in the country, yachts were still a luxury item that very few people could afford. Although 

Xia ruofei had only bought a small 10 – meter boat, one could tell at a glance that he was young and 

rich. It was natural to make friends with such a big customer. 

The car was not allowed to drive directly to the yacht dock, so Liao Bo asked for an electric car. The 

three of them took the electric car and headed to the yacht dock not far away. 

After a short while, Xia ruofei and the rest had arrived at the dock. 

The voyage yacht dock didn’t look small. There were at least dozens of yacht parking spaces, but many 

of them were empty. 

Xia ruofei immediately saw the yacht, azimuttlantis 34, quietly docked at berth 16, rising and falling with 

the waves. 

The yacht looked even more beautiful than in the brochure. It was blue under the blue sky, and there 

were eye – catching red decorative ribbons on both sides of the White hull, which looked like red 

lightning. 

At first sight, the streamlined body of the airship looked athletic. 

The electric car stopped next to the parking space. Liao Bo jumped out of the car and said with a 

smile,””Mr. Xia, this is your yacht!” 



Xia ruofei and Liu Yi also got out of the car. The staff had already put down the bridge. Liao Bo came to 

the side of the bridge and made a gesture to Xia ruofei, saying,””Mr. Xia, this way please!” 

Xia ruofei smiled and walked over to the deck. 

Liao Bo and Liu Yi also got on the yacht in turn. He said,””Mr. Xia, I’ll show you around first, then we’ll 

try driving it again, how about that?” 

Chapter 2076 Another_Xia ruofei smiled as he admired the new yacht.””No problem! I’ll follow your 

arrangements!” 

“Okay, Mr. Xia, we are now on the yacht’s underwater platform.” Liao Bo immediately introduced,”this 

model is a sports yacht. Although the size is relatively small in the entire series, the power is very strong 

...” 

Liao Bo was obviously very familiar with the business and some data was at his fingertips. He led Xia 

ruofei and introduced the yacht as they walked. Very quickly, Xia ruofei had a deeper understanding of 

this yacht. 

The design of the yacht was very advanced and looked very high – tech. There was a large soft roof in 

front of the driver’s seat, allowing him to enjoy 360 degrees of sun without any shade. 

On the lower floor, there was a circle of soft couches in the guest lounge area, as well as a large 

independent bedroom. Although the yacht was small, its layout was very reasonable. Every inch of space 

was used, and one would not feel crowded at all. There was only a luxurious and comfortable feeling. 

After Liao Bo showed Xia ruofei around, the pilot, Liu Yi, started the yacht after getting Xia ruofei’s 

consent. 

With the sound of the engine, the yacht slowly started and headed towards the sea. 

This model of yacht had good sports performance. When it sped up, the sea breeze blew with a trace of 

salty smell, and the boundless sea made people feel relaxed and happy. 

Xia ruofei sat in the driver’s seat for a while and then went down to the underwater platform at the end 

of the yacht. From there, he could see the snow – White water spray caused by the yacht, forming a 

white trace behind the yacht. 

If it was summer, Xia ruofei would have jumped into the water to take a swim. Although it would not be 

a problem for him to go into the water no matter the temperature or environment, Liao Bo and Liu Yi 

would find it strange. 

Hence, Xia ruofei held back the urge to go into the sea. After all, he would still be using the yacht in the 

realm after it was delivered. By then, he could enjoy the entire sea alone and swim however he wanted. 

Liu Yi drove the yacht to the calm open sea, stopped, and anchored it. The yacht swayed gently with the 

waves. 

Liao Bo started to introduce the entertainment facilities on the yacht to Xia ruofei. 



In fact, many people who owned a yacht pursued a slow life. After all, only a few people drove a yacht 

like a speedboat. 

They could choose a quiet harbor to fish, swim, or lie on the yacht to enjoy the beautiful sea and sky. 

They could meet up with three to five confidants and have a small party on the yacht, tasting red wine 

and seafood barbeque ... 

After stopping for about half an hour, the three of them drove the yacht back. 

Today, Xia ruofei was mainly here to check on the yacht, including the custom – made interior, such as 

the jacuzzi and so on. He also wanted to experience the yacht’s performance. Everything was fine, so he 

returned to the yacht dock early. After all, there were still many procedures to be completed! 

Soon, the yacht returned to the yuanhang dock. 

After they went ashore, Liao Bo drove the electric car and brought Xia ruofei back to the office hall. 

“Mr. Xia, how do you feel?” The manager, Qin Lan, came out to greet him and asked with a smile. 

“Not bad, you’ve basically met my expectations.” Xia ruofei nodded. 

“If there’s no problem, the yacht can be handed over to you after you pay the remaining payment!” Qin 

Lan said with a smile. 

“You’re in charge of all the relevant procedures, right?”Xia ruofei nodded. 

Qin Lan nodded.”We’re the ones who handle all the registration procedures. We’re very familiar with 

the maritime department. It’ll be more troublesome for the customer to handle it by himself.” 

In fact, before purchasing a yacht, one needed to apply to the maritime department, and the contract 

could only be purchased after it was approved. 

Xia ruofei had signed a commission agreement when he made the order, so he did not have to go 

through these procedures himself. Now that the yacht had arrived at the port, Qin Lan’s company was in 

charge of the follow – up procedures. It was much more convenient. 

Xia ruofei smiled.”That’s not a problem then. I’ll go and pay the rest.” 

“Mr. Xia, this way please!” Qin Lan immediately said. 

Xia ruofei swiped his card and paid the rest of the money. He had plenty of balance in his card and there 

was no limit to the amount he could swipe. 1.85 million was swiped out in one go. 

Qin Lan personally received Xia ruofei. She put the card receipt, receipt, and some other administrative 

documents into a folder and handed it to Xia ruofei. She said,””Mr. Xia, thank you for your trust in our 

brand! Congratulations on owning your own private yacht! We’ll hurry up with the relevant procedures 

and complete them in a week at the latest. When the time comes, I’ll get little Liao to contact you!” 

“Alright!” Xia ruofei said,”if I’m not at the three mountains by then, please send the documents to the 

peach blossom mansion in the Bell Tower District. I’ll get someone to collect them.” 



“No problem!” Qin Lan said,”by the way, you can use the yacht as usual during this period. If you 

encounter an inspection by the maritime department, you can just show the documents I gave you just 

now.” 

Xia ruofei nodded to show that he understood. It was similar to a temporary license plate of a car. It was 

valid for a certain period of time. 

Qin Lan continued,”Mr. Xia, our company also provides yacht – related services, including berth rental, 

daily maintenance, and yacht Driver Services. You can consider applying for a member package. You will 

get a lot of discounts in terms of fees.” 

Chapter 2077 Another_2 

“I’m not planning to use this yacht in the three mountains. We’ll talk about it when we need it!”Xia 

ruofei smiled. 

Hearing this, Qin Lan was slightly disappointed, but she did not show it. She only smiled and 

said,””Alright,” he said. 

“By the way, when I made the order, manager Liao told me that you provide delivery services.” Xia 

ruofei said,”I need to transport the yacht to a warehouse in my city. Is that okay?” 

“Of course, no problem,” Qin Lan replied without hesitation.”These are all within the scope of our after 

– Sales service. You just need to provide the address.” 

Qin Lan had a fresh memory of this somewhat strange request. Generally speaking, customers would 

definitely not ask to store the yacht in the warehouse. After all, they bought the yacht for use. How 

could they use it if it was placed on land? 

At that time, Liao Bo had also considered that the yacht was very size and Xia ruofei had also guaranteed 

that there were no problems with the warehouse and the access road. They could definitely pass 

through, so he had agreed to this strange request. 

After all, compared to a business worth millions, the small cost of hoisting the yacht onto a flatbed cart 

and transporting it to the city was nothing. 

Hearing this, Xia ruofei took a piece of paper from the table and wrote down the address of his 

warehouse in the city. Then, he handed it to Qin Lan. 

“I hope you can arrange for the yacht to be sent here as soon as possible,” he said. 

“We’ll contact the flatbed today, but it will take some time to hoist and fix the yacht. Can we send it to 

you by tomorrow morning at the latest?” Qin Lan asked. 

“Alright, thank you for your hard work!” Xia ruofei nodded. 

Qin Lan smiled and nodded. The business was done now. All they needed to do was to let Liao Bo go 

through the procedures and transfer the yacht to Xia ruofei. 

Just as she was about to send Xia ruofei out, Xia ruofei suddenly asked,””Manager Qin, are there any 

discounts for buying a yacht?” 



Qin Lan was stunned for a moment and then quickly said,””There are! There were! Mr. Xia, you’re our 

old customer. If you buy a new boat from our company, you can enjoy a discount, which is comparable 

to the yacht exhibition!” 

After Qin Lan finished speaking, she looked at Xia ruofei with anticipation. 

Of course, she didn’t have much hope. After all, Xia ruofei had just bought a new yacht and had not used 

it yet. The possibility of buying another yacht under such circumstances was too low. 

However, she felt that since Xia ruofei had asked, he was definitely not just asking casually. Perhaps he 

was introducing a friend to buy it? 

Yachts were a luxury item with a very small audience. They were high – end toys for the rich. This nature 

determined that Yacht Sales could not be as high as car 4S stores. Therefore, it was more important to 

maintain the relationship with high – end customers. 

Of course, Qin Lan didn’t know that Xia ruofei’s small sports yacht was meant to be stored in the 

medium. The reason why he asked was that he really wanted to buy another yacht to be used in the 

outside world. 

On one hand, he had fallen in love with the feeling of freedom after experiencing it just now. However, 

he was free in the space. After all, it was his secret. He had always been alone in the space. Even if it was 

a yacht, there was less fun. Moreover, he couldn’t share it with the people close to him. 

On the other hand, Xia ruofei had a lot of money now, especially from the trip to Italy. He had earned 

nearly 300 million euros, which was about 3 billion in Chinese dollars. Buying a yacht was a small 

amount. 

If he bought a yacht and placed it outside, he could drive the yacht out to sea with his good friends and 

female confidants when he was free. He could even organize a party for the company’s management 

and treat it as company welfare. 

Hearing this, Xia ruofei said with interest,””Oh, really? Then can you introduce me to them? is there 

anything you can recommend?” 

“Mr. Xia, let’s sit over there and talk!” Qin Lan said enthusiastically. 

Then, she turned around and shouted,”little Liao!” And a cup of hot tea for Mr. Xia! Quickly order the 

fruit plate and desserts!” 

“Alright!” Liao Bo quickly responded. 

Qin Lan invited Xia ruofei to sit on the leather sofa in the guest area. Then, she asked expectantly,””Mr. 

Xia, would you like to buy it yourself or introduce it to your friend? I need to understand your needs 

before I can recommend it to you!” 

Xia ruofei smiled and said,”I want to build one myself. As for the requirements ... I’m not too specific. It’s 

just that it has a bigger size and better performance. It’d be best if it’s a new model. That way, there will 

be more new technology!” 

“I understand! I understand!” Qin Lan said and then asked carefully,”then do you have a price in mind?” 



It was a taboo for some rich people to ask this question because it would seem like they were doubting 

their ability. 

But Xia ruofei did not mind. He smiled and said,””The price is not a problem. As long as I like it, it’s fine 

even if it’s a little expensive.” 

Hearing this, Qin Lan was even more overjoyed. One look and one could tell that this person was not 

short of money. They liked this kind of customer the most. They would not be calculative about the price 

and most of them were very generous. As long as they took a fancy to them, they would buy it. 

“Mr. Xia, if that’s the case, I would recommend you to buy the azmu feiqiao series of large yachts, such 

as the Azimut84, Azimut84us, Azimut88, and so on ...” She quickly cheered up and said. 

While Qin Lan was introducing, she skillfully found the corresponding color page from the side and 

placed it in front of Xia ruofei. 

Xia ruofei looked at the colorful page with great interest. The yachts mentioned by Qin Lan were 25 to 

26 meters long. The interior space was more spacious and the facilities were quite luxurious. 

There was no price tag on the colorful page, but Xia ruofei knew that it was much more expensive than 

the one he had bought before. 

From the corner of his eyes, Xia ruofei caught a glimpse of another colorful page. The photo of the yacht 

on it made his eyes light up. He could not help but point at the photo and ask,””Manager Qin, what 

model is this yacht?” 

Qin Lan stopped the introduction and looked in the direction that Xia ruofei was pointing at. She quickly 

passed the colored page to Xia ruofei and said,””Mr. Xia, this is the Azimut100 Leonardo. It’s the size in 

this series. It’s 30.51 meters long, 6.8 meters wide, and its highest speed is 32 knots ...” 

Qin Lan reported the series of data of the Azimut100 Leonado yacht without thinking. 

Then, she said,”Mr. Xia, this yacht is 30 meters long from the bow to the stern. It has a huge space and 

unique decorations. It gives you a very comfortable and elegant feeling. It will bring you an infinite and 

elegant life experience.” You can invite your friends and family to enjoy the fun at sea on this huge open 

– Air deck. 

It had a large and variable stern deck with a U – shaped bench that could be turned into a comfortable 

beach bed. 

There was a unique passage design on the ship to ensure that the service personnel on the ship could 

pass quickly without affecting the privacy of the guests on the ship. 

The yacht had a unique, large sea view penthouse with a super large sofa and impressive furniture on 

the observation deck. In addition, the stern deck was also made of high – grade pomelo wood. 

It also has a large master room with a large wardrobe, a Large resting area and bathroom, and a large 

shower ...” 

Xia ruofei couldn’t help but laugh.””From what you’ve said, it’s like a Palace on the sea!” 



Qin Lan laughed in embarrassment and said,””Mr. Xia, I’m not exaggerating. This model of yacht is one 

of the top brands in the azmu brand. Many world – Class celebrities have bought yachts of this model!” 

Xia ruofei flipped through the introduction on the colored page and nodded.””It looks good. How much 

does it cost to buy this yacht now?” 

Chapter 2078 Light at the end of the tunnel (1) 

Qin Lan was very familiar with the business and was familiar with the prices of various models of yachts. 

She said without thinking,””Mr. Xia, the price of this yacht is about 70 million Chinese dollars!” 

At this point, Qin Lan glanced at Xia ruofei discreetly. She saw that Xia ruofei’s expression was normal. 

He did not have any reaction to the shocking price and did not even blink. She was relieved. 

In Qin Lan’s opinion, Xia ruofei was undoubtedly a rich man. Otherwise, he would not have spent three 

to four million on a yacht. However, rich people were different. Being able to afford a small yacht that 

cost nearly four million did not mean that he had the ability to buy a luxury yacht that cost tens of 

millions. 

Now it seemed that Xia ruofei was very wealthy. At least, he would have no problem buying the azmu 

100 Leonardo. This also made Qin Lan more enthusiastic about promoting her. 

At the same time, she couldn’t help but sigh in her heart. It was really infuriating to compare with 

others. This young man in front of her was at most in his twenties, but he already had wealth that she 

couldn’t earn in her lifetime ... 

Qin Lan was only distracted for a moment before he immediately said,””Mr. Xia, if you order now, we 

can give you a 10% discount. This is the maximum authority that the yacht manufacturer has given us. 

It’s still very cost – effective.” 

A 10% discount didn’t seem like much, but this was a huge order of 70 million Huaxia dollars. A 10% 

discount would be about 7 million Yuan cheaper. The yacht that Xia ruofei had bought this time was less 

than 4 million! 

“Oh!” Xia ruofei nodded and asked,”other than the 10% discount, are there no other benefits?” 

Qin Lan said with a smile,”Mr. Xia, this discount is all real money. Moreover, it’s a discount range of 

nearly 7 million. I’ve been in the business for many years. This is the first time I’ve heard of such a big 

discount range!” 

Qin Lan was not lying. Yachts were the standard luxury goods. This industry did not need to rely on 

discounts or promotions to increase sales. Moreover, the total price was very expensive, so a 10% 

discount was indeed a very good deal. 

Qin Lan continued,”of course, other than this discount, some of our preferential policies during the 

yacht exhibition are still applicable. This includes the seven – day stay in any luxury suite of the Four 

Seasons Hotel’s worldwide chain stores. Also, once you buy this yacht, you will automatically be 

upgraded to a Platinum member of our Yacht Club. You can enjoy even greater discounts for subsequent 

maintenance and maintenance.” 

Xia ruofei nodded and said,””I like this yacht, but I don’t think your discount is that big!” 



Naturally, Xia ruofei would not agree so readily. 

Of course, although he did not know much about this yacht, the internet was so advanced now. He only 

needed to check the internet a little to know the domestic price of this yacht. He was not worried that 

Qin Lan would give a false price. 

Qin Lan had been in this line of work for many years. She had long trained her ability to read people’s 

expressions. She could tell that Xia ruofei definitely had the ability to buy it. However, if there were no 

more attractive conditions, Xia ruofei would probably not make a decision to buy it easily. 

When he thought of this, Qin Lan’s brain was spinning rapidly. He then gritted his teeth and said,””Mr. 

Xia, this is the limit of the price that the manufacturer has given me. As far as I know, this discount is 

basically the limit on the global scale ... But if you really want to buy it, we can give you some discounts 

through other means.” 

Xia ruofei raised his eyebrows and smiled.”Oh? What other discounts are there?” 

“Mr. Xia,” Qin Lan said,”you can choose to upgrade some of the facilities on the azmu yacht. For 

example, the yacht you bought last time doesn’t have a Jacuzzi as a standard, but you can buy it for a 

fee. If you order this azmu 100 Leonardo, I can make the decision to upgrade some of the accessories for 

free. The upper limit is 500000 Huaxia dollars. ” 

Qin Lan glanced at Xia ruofei. Seeing that he still did not say anything, she gritted her teeth and 

said,””Also, you’ll definitely need a full range of security services when you buy a yacht, including 

parking, maintenance, and so on. If you choose our company to provide these services, we can give you 

the right to use one of the parking spaces for three years, as well as two years of free maintenance, and 

two years of management fee exemption ...” 

In fact, what Qin Lan said didn’t require their company to pay too much for the upgrade of the parts. 

The manufacturer had given them certain authority. Within the range of 500000 Chinese dollars, they 

could get it for free. Of course, whether the distributors used this authority or not, how much they used, 

would still have a certain impact on their sales share. 

However, after such a luxury yacht was sold, the dealer could get a very considerable sales share. Even 

with a discount, the money was still very attractive. Moreover, if the deal couldn’t be closed, then it 

would be zero income. It was self – evident which one to choose. 

As for the security services in the future, such as the yacht berths, their company had already invested in 

them in advance. Leaving them idle would not produce any benefits. It was the same for management 

fees. The cost of personnel had already been generated. It would not increase the cost by much just 

because there was an increase in the number of yachts under service. 

This was the same logic as those wedding photos and barbershops often used very low prices to do 

group purchases. 

Chapter 2079 Light at the end of the tunnel (2) 

The only thing that the distributors had to spend money on was nothing more than two years of free 

maintenance. However, such maintenance items were priced very high. In fact, the consumables and 



parts used for the maintenance were directly purchased from the manufacturers, so the cost was not as 

scary as the marked price. 

Of course, to Xia ruofei, the preferential conditions that Qin Lan had given him were still very practical. 

In total, he had saved at least one million Yuan. 

Xia ruofei thought for a moment and said,””Manager Qin, I’ll think about it. You can go back to your 

work!” 

Seeing that Xia ruofei did not make a decision immediately, Qin Lan could not help but feel a little 

disappointed. However, on second thought, this was a deal worth tens of millions. How could she expect 

the other party to place an order in such a short time? 

She revealed a warm smile and said,””Alright! Mr. Xia, if you need anything, you can contact me at any 

time! This is my name card!” 

After he finished speaking, Qin Lan handed over his name card with both hands. 

Xia ruofei took the name card and nodded with a smile.””Good! I’ll contact you after I’ve considered it. ” 

With that, Xia ruofei put the business card in his pocket and left. 

After he drove back to the little villa at Taoyuan farm, he quickly searched for information on the azmu 

100 Leonardo on his computer. 

He had to admit that Qin Lan’s introduction had indeed moved him. 

The information disclosed on the internet showed that the price Qin Lan gave him was not an 

exaggeration. Several professional yacht websites also gave a reference price of about 70 million. In 

addition, this yacht was indeed loved by the rich and celebrities. There were several rich and celebrities 

who owned this yacht listed on the internet, including the former richest man in China and a world – 

Class sports star. 

Xia ruofei had always been very decisive in his actions. Besides, tens of millions of Yuan was nothing to 

him now. Even if he wanted to buy a private jet that was worth hundreds of millions, he had the ability 

to do so. However, now that he had the Gulfstream business jet that Li Yifu had given him as a gift, there 

was no need to buy a private jet for the time being. Buying a yacht to enjoy himself was even more 

simple. 

Therefore, after browsing through the information on the internet, Xia ruofei found Qin Lan’s business 

card and dialed the number on it ... 

After Qin Lan received Xia ruofei, she quickly threw herself into other work. 

Their company was not only in the sales of azmu’s yachts. They were also running the Yacht Club and 

providing a comprehensive protection service for the club members. After all, the yacht consumer group 

was not large. It was not enough to just rely on selling yachts. The after – Sales paid service could bring 

in more profits. 

Xia ruofei did not place the order on the spot. Qin Lan felt a little regretful, but she did not feel too 

disappointed. After all, it was such an expensive item. She did not have much hope. 



Besides, Qin Lan could feel that Xia ruofei was interested in this yacht. This was a great gain for her. The 

high – end customer base was built up through the accumulation of daily life. 

When Xia ruofei bought the sports yacht, he had left his contact information. After sending Xia ruofei 

off, Qin Lan immediately asked Liao Bo for Xia ruofei’s phone number and saved it in her phone. 

Therefore, when her phone rang, Qin Lan immediately saw that it was Xia ruofei. She was overjoyed. 

She did not expect Xia ruofei to make a decision so quickly. 

Qin Lan immediately stopped what she was doing and picked up the phone in a hurry. She said 

enthusiastically,””Mr. Xia, how are you?” 

“Manager Qin, I’m personally quite interested in the azmu 100 Leonado yacht you introduced this 

morning.” Xia ruofei got straight to the point.”If I place an order now, how long will it take for the yacht 

to be delivered to me?” 

Qin Lan quickly said,”Mr. Xia, the sales of the yacht are usually done after the order is placed. The 

manufacturer will then start production. Azmu is a relatively popular yacht brand and usually has a lot of 

orders. Therefore, the delivery period for large yachts like this is usually about a year.” 

Xia ruofei couldn’t help but frown.””It’s going to take a year?” 

Qin Lan quickly explained,”Mr. Xia, one year is already considered very fast. This is only a general model 

yacht. If it’s a customized one, it will take even longer.” 

Perhaps he felt that it was not very convincing, Qin Lan immediately added,””In fact, whether it’s a 

private yacht or a private jet, the delivery period is relatively long. It’s said that the Gulfstream’s 

commercial plane takes about three years on average to be delivered! The azmu yacht that Ali’s Boss Ma 

ordered had been in production for more than a year. So ... One year is not that long ...” 

Xia ruofei thought for a while and said,””I thought two or three months would be enough, just like the 

yacht I bought ... I didn’t expect it to take as long as a year ... Forget it, manager Qin, I’ll think about it!” 

Seeing that Xia ruofei was about to place the order but backed out because of the delivery period, Qin 

Lan was anxious. However, she could not do anything about it. If it was a problem in other aspects, she 

could still ask for instructions from the higher – ups, but the delivery period was determined by the 

manufacturer. She had no way to change it. 

“Alright, alright! You can contact me at any time after you’ve considered it!” Qin Lan said and then 

added,”Mr. Xia, actually, the delivery period is not too long. You can find a friend to understand ...” 

“I understand. Thank you, manager Qin!” Xia ruofei said. 

Xia ruofei was not easily influenced by others. He felt that the delivery period was too long. If he could 

not accept it, he would not change his mind no matter what Qin Lan said. 

At the Yacht Club. 

After Qin Lan hung up the phone, her face was filled with disappointment. 



When Qin Lan answered the phone, Liao Bo was reporting to her in the office. Liao Bo was going to 

leave, but when he heard Qin Lan call the other party “Mr. Xia”, he immediately knew that it was his 

previous client, Xia ruofei. Therefore, he decided to stay. 

Liao Bo looked at Qin Lan and asked with concern,””Manager, is that Mr. Xia?” 

“Yeah!” Qin Lan nodded. 

“Are you talking about the azmu 100 Leonardo?” Liao Bo immediately asked. 

Xia ruofei suddenly had an idea today and was interested in the azmu 100 Leonardo yacht. Liao Bo was 

the first to know about it and that was why he asked. 

“Isn’t that so?”Qin Lan sighed. I heard that he already wanted to place an order, but ... When he heard 

that the delivery period would take a year, he gave up ...” 

When Liao Bo heard this, he smiled bitterly and said,”one year is indeed a bit long. However, we have no 

way to control this!” Manager, forget it, forget it. It’s our order, so it can’t run away no matter what. It’s 

money that we shouldn’t be earning, so there’s no point in being anxious!” 

“En!” Qin Lan rubbed her temples and said,”I’m just a little unwilling. I’m very close to getting this order 

... Sigh! Xiao Liao, where were you just now? Let’s continue!” 

“Oh!” Liao Bo said. 

Then, Liao Bo suddenly patted his head and asked anxiously,””Manager, do you still remember the 

model of the yacht that President Huang ordered?” 

“President Huang?” Qin Lan could not react for a moment. 

“Director Huang of the Tianyang group!” Liao Bo reminded him,”he’s the client you personally 

contacted. How could you have forgotten?” 

Qin Lan was suddenly enlightened. Her eyes brightened as she said,””Azmu 100 Leonardo! CEO Huang 

has ordered the azmu 100 Leonardo!” 

Liao Bo and Qin Lan looked at each other and both of them revealed a look of surprise. Liao Bo then 

said,””Manager, do you think it’s possible? If it’s possible, then it’s the best of both worlds!” 

Chapter 2080 Return (1) 

The CEO Huang that Liao Bo was talking about was the boss of the Tian Yang group in San Shan city. He 

had ordered an azmu 100 Leonardo yacht more than a year ago and had paid a deposit of more than 30 

million Chinese dollars. 

However, the world was unpredictable. The yacht was about to be delivered, but President Huang’s 

company was in big trouble. The Tianyang group was a small and medium – sized real estate company. 

The debt rate of a real estate company was relatively high, and they often walked on a tightrope when it 

came to capital operations. 



President Huang was also unlucky. Several accidents had happened on the construction site one after 

another, and a project quality problem was exposed in a building under construction. All of these things 

piled together and made President Huang overwrought. 

Because of the media exposure, several problematic construction sites of the Tianyang group were 

ordered to stop work and rectify. Even the application of the house pre – Sale certificate was stuck. This 

was what real estate companies were most afraid of. If the time was delayed, there would be problems 

with the capital chain. 

Now, boss Huang was facing internal and external difficulties. The construction team and suppliers were 

all looking for him for money, and the bank loan was about to expire. Initially, he wanted to sell the 

houses to get back the funds, but after the real estate problem occurred, the pre – Sale certificate was 

blocked, and the company was suddenly in a desperate situation. 

Under such circumstances, how could President Huang still be in the mood to play with the yacht? 

Moreover, there was still more than 30 million Yuan left, which he couldn’t take out now! 

Not only was he unable to pay the rest of the money, but CEO Huang was also thinking about whether 

he could return the order. Even if he could not return all of the thirty million Yuan that he had paid in 

advance, even if he returned a portion of it, it could at least relieve the company’s financial pressure a 

little. Even if it was a drop in the bucket, it would still be useful. 

Therefore, President Huang went to Qin Lan’s company. 

In this case, it was impossible to cancel the order, because even the general model yacht was 

customized according to the buyer’s requirements. In this sense, every yacht was unique. Who would 

they sell it to if they returned it? 

Besides, how could such a high – end toy that was worth tens of millions be easily sold? It was 

impossible to return the yacht from the manufacturer. The yacht had already been cleared through 

customs. If Qin Lan’s sales company bought it first, it would be equivalent to a backlog of tens of millions 

of funds. This was unacceptable. 

Therefore, even though CEO Huang had come to mediate a few times, this matter had been stuck here. 

This made the sales company very distressed. 

Today, when Liao Bo mentioned CEO Huang, Qin Lan’s mind couldn’t help but be active. If this problem 

could really be solved, it would be equivalent to solving a big problem for the company. It would 

definitely add many points to the leader’s side. 

Furthermore, CEO Huang would definitely be extremely grateful to her. It was equivalent to solving a big 

problem for CEO Huang! 

Qin Lan asked hesitantly,”little Liao, Mr. Xia doesn’t lack money. This yacht was ordered by someone 

else. It’s configured according to their thoughts. Can he ... Accept it?” 

“How would we know if we don’t try?” Liao Bo said. Mr. Xia didn’t seem to be a particularly picky 

person. Besides, wasn’t the delivery time the most important thing to him? If he wants this yacht, he 

doesn’t have to wait and can use it immediately. Maybe he’ll be tempted?” 



Qin Lan nodded heavily and said,””I’ll call him right now and tell him about this!” 

Liao Bo quickly stopped Qin Lan and said,””Manager, I think it’s better to take a break first!” 

“Why?” Qin Lan asked in confusion. 

Liao Bo said,”he just finished his call. Wouldn’t it be too easy for us to reply so quickly?” Why don’t we 

do this? aren’t we going to send him the Atlantean 34 yacht tomorrow? Why don’t you make a trip 

there yourself and tell him about the situation in person? perhaps the effect will be better!” 

Qin Lan pondered for a moment and said with a smile,””You’re full of ideas, kid! Let’s do this! If this deal 

is successful, you will have done a great service!” 

“Thank you, manager!” Liao Bo laughed. 

…… 

Xia ruofei didn’t know what had happened at the Yacht Club. He didn’t care about it after he hung up 

the phone. He heard that it took so long to pay for a yacht. Xia ruofei was a little hesitant. After all, a 

yacht wasn’t something he just needed. 

He was too lazy to start a fire for lunch, so he went straight to the farm cafeteria for a meal. 

Although the headquarters had been moved to the city, the farm’s cafeteria had not been removed. On 

the one hand, there were still many workers on the farm, and providing them with breakfast and lunch 

was considered a benefit. They only needed to pay a symbolic little money for each meal, and everyone 

welcomed them. They were used to going to work early every day and eating at the farm. On the other 

hand, some young employees were still living in the staff dormitory. They took the bus back to the farm 

from the city after work and often had dinner in the cafeteria. 

It would not cost much to keep a cafeteria and hire a few more employees anyway. Xia ruofei would not 

save money in this aspect. 

Xia ruofei had not returned to the farm for many days. When he arrived at the canteen, the workers all 

greeted him warmly. Cao tieshu’s wife, who was in charge of the canteen, even specially cooked a small 

stove for Xia ruofei and made a few of his signature dishes. 

Xia ruofei happily sat at the same table with the workers and shared the extra dishes with everyone. 

They chatted as they ate, and the atmosphere was harmonious. 

He didn’t put on any airs, and the benefits he gave everyone were so good, so everyone naturally liked 

this young boss. 

 


